
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

April 21, 2022 
 

Patrick S. Jordan, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, April 21, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Special Meeting – April 4, 2022 
           Special Meeting Budget – April 4, 2022 
           Special Meeting Budget – April 5, 2022 

      Regular Meeting – April 7, 2022 
      Special Meeting – April 13, 2022 

APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. Setting of Public Hearing – FY2022-2023 Budget – May 5, 2022. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council set May 5, 2022, as the fourth Public Hearing on the proposed 
2022-2023 City Fiscal Year Budget. 
 

2. Approval – Unbudgeted Capital Funds for Security System/Supporting Electrical - Marina. 
Explanation:  Administration is requesting City Council approval of unbudgeted capital funds for purchase of a security 
system at the lowest bid and best equipment provided by Hurley Marine at $16,388, and implementation of necessary 
electrical work for installation not to exceed $5,000. 
 

3. Approval – Ludington Park Food/Drink Concessions for the 2022 Season – Recreation. 
Explanation: Eighteen bids were mailed on January 26, 2022, with one bid being received from Sticky Fingers of 
Gladstone, Michigan. Bids were opened on March 21, 2022. The Recreation Advisory Board met on April 12, 2022, and 
recommend City Council approval of the bid. 
 

4. Approval – Sanitation Services for the 2022-2023 Season – Recreation. 
Explanation: Two bids were mailed on January 26, 2022, with one bid being received from Stenberg Brothers of Bark 
River, Michigan. Bids were opened on March 21, 2022. The Recreation Advisory Board met on April 12, 2022, and 
recommend City Council approval of the bid. 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda – April 21, 2022 
 
5. Approval – Agreement to Maintain Monument on City Property – Recreation. 

Explanation: The City of Escanaba has been working with the Delta County Trades and Labor to create a monument 
to labor since 2013 when the Esky 150th Celebration took place. Administration is seeking City Council approval of said 
agreement. The construction, installation, all maintenance, and all future maintenance will be the sole responsibility 
of the Delta Schoolcraft Community Labor Council. This monument will be erected at the Municipal Dock. 
 

6. Approval – Professional Services Agreement for City Attorney Services – Administration. 
Explanation: Pursuant to City Charter, City Manager has engaged Attorney Brett Gardner, of Brett Gardner Law, to 
provide attorney services for the City of Escanaba. Administration is requesting approval of contract with Attorney 
Gardner. 
 

7. Approval – Closing of the 100 Block of South 11th Street for RRN Block Party – Administration. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval, on behalf of Mike Daniels from RRN Radio, for the closing 
of the 100 block of South 11th Street for the annual RRN Block Party. Alcohol will be sold and all local requirements 
and State LCC requirements will be followed. The event date and time is July 29, 2022, from 5pm to 11pm, with set 
up beginning at 8am and tear down completed by 12:30am. 
 

8. First Reading – Ordinance No. 1260 – Allow Side-by-Side UTV Operation on City Streets – Administration. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council to consider this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1260, An 
Ordinance to Allow Side-by-Side UTV Operation on City Streets. Administration is requesting that the City Council set 
May 5, 2022, for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance No. 1260. The Traffic Safety and 
Recreation Committees have both discussed and recommended passage of this ordinance. 
 

9. Approval – WWTP Parking Lot, Driveway, and Approach Prep for Gravel & Asphalt – Wastewater. 
Explanation: (a) Administration is requesting City Council approval for monies to complete the work required to build 
and prepare the parking lot and concrete approaches as part of the work being done at the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant in an amount not to exceed $90,000.00. (b) Administration is requesting City Council approval for monies to 
pave the parking lot on the west side of the plant as part of the work being done at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
in an amount no to exceed $110,000.00. 
 

APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       
ADJOURNMENT          
 

 
Respectfully Submitted  

 
 

Patrick S. Jordan  
City Manager  



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Special Council Meeting 

Monday, April 4, 2022 
 
Pursuant to a meeting notice posted on March 18, 2022, the meeting was called to order 
by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 8:45 a.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall 
located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler D. 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Clerk Phil DeMay, and Department 

Heads. 
 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

DuBord moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

Nancy Przewrocki – discussed the district commission lines and other related 
reapportionment information. 
  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
PH-1 Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption – Ordinance No. 1257 – 
Updating Precinct Boundaries Based on the 2021 Delta County Reapportionment. 
 

The Qualified Voter File (QVF) street index needed to be updated to change the City 
precinct lines as directed by the County Reapportionment Committee. Ordinance No. 
1257 updates precinct boundaries based on the 2021 Reapportionment. 

 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 

 
Hearing no further public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing.  

 
PH-1 “By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Moore; 

 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1257, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 10, Elections, 
of the City Code of Ordinances in the City of Escanaba – Precinct Boundaries, given 
its public hearing at this meeting, be and is hereby adopted and that it be published in 



City Council Minutes  
April 4, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

accordance with the requirements of the City Charter." 
 

Herewith Ordinance No. 1257 adopted by title: 
 

“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 10, ELECTIONS, OF THE CITY CODE 
OF ORDINANCES IN THE CITY OF ESCANABA” 

 
Full text in Ordinance Record “L”.  

 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 

 
Ayes:  DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays:  None 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 

 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS – None 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 

Hearing no further public comment Tyler moved, Flath seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 8:58 a.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted 

 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: _____________________  
City Clerk        Mark Ammel, Mayor 



City of Escanaba 
Special Council Meeting 

Monday, April 4, 2022 
 

Pursuant to a meeting notice posted March 10, 2022, the Council of the City of Escanaba 
convened in special session in Room 101 of City Hall at 9:00 a.m., to begin the review and 
discussion of the proposed 2022/23 City Budget. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler DuBord, 

Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
  
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Controller Melissa Becotte, City Clerk Phil 

DeMay, Department Heads, media, and members of the public 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
 
City Manager Patrick Jordan and City Controller Melissa Becotte presented Council the 
following Budget information: 

CITY MANAGER’S FINAL BUDGET OVERVIEW – FY 2022-23 

Pursuant to the Escanaba City Charter and relevant state laws, I hereby submit for City Council and community review the 

final FY 2022-23 Budget. A copy of this document has been placed on file with the City Clerk and at the Escanaba Public 

Library, where the public may review it during normal hours of operation. An electronic version is also available on the 

City’s website, www.escanaba.org, and on the City of Escanaba’s Facebook page. This document serves as a daily guide for 

City Administration in receiving and allocating resources in the most effective way for the good of the community. 

This budget, with over $37 million in expenditures, reflects our commitment in providing core services to our community 

and was developed using the best available information and most current revenue projections. 

 
 

http://www.escanaba.org/


Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

2 

 

City Millage Rate/Tax Rate and Tax Roll. The final budget is based on a property tax rate of 17 mills, which will not 

require any tax increase in the upcoming fiscal year. 

 

For homeowners in the City, 39.92% of the total property tax bill is kept by the City of Escanaba to pay for all General Fund 

services provided. The remaining 60.08% of a homeowner’s tax bill is remitted to Delta County, the State of Michigan, the 

Escanaba School District, the Delta Schoolcraft Intermediate School District (DSISD), the Delta County Sheriff 

Department, 911 Operations, the Delta Area Transit Authority (DATA), Community Action Agency (CAA) and Bay de Noc 

Community College. 

WHERE YOUR TAX DOLLAR GOES… 

HOMEOWNER WITH HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION 

 

      

C
it

y
 o

f 
E

sc
a
n

a
b

a
 

3
9
.9

2
%

 

  
D

el
ta

 C
o
u

n
ty

 

2
1
.2

1
%

 

 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
M

ic
h

ig
a
n

 

1
4
.0

9
%

 

E
sc

a
n

a
b

a
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
ch

o
o
ls

 

8
.1

2
%

 

 

B
a
y
 C

o
ll

eg
e 

7
.7

7
%

 

D
S

IS
D

 
5
.6

0
%

 

D
A

T
A

 
1
.4

1
%

 

C
A

A
 
1
.8

8
%

 

 
 

NON-HOMESTEADED PROPERTY 
 

     

E
sc

a
n

a
b

a
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
ch

o
o
ls

 

3
5
.4

2
%

 

    
C

it
y
 o

f 
E

sc
a
n

a
b

a
 

2
8
.0

6
%

 

 
D

el
ta

 C
o
u

n
ty

 

1
4
.9

1
%

 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
M

ic
h

ig
a
n

 

9
.9

0
%

 

B
a
y
 C

o
ll

eg
e 

5
.4

6
%

 

D
S

IS
D

 
3
.9

4
%

 

D
A

T
A

 
0
.9

9
%

 

C
A

A
 
1
.3

2
%

 

 

General Fund. The General Fund budget, which supports many of the day-to-day activities of the City, is $9,832,446 

(including transfers in from other funds), representing an increase of 8.4% from the previous year’s budget. At the end of 

FY 2020-21, the General Fund balance was $6,164,849, with a long-term debt obligation of $375,000. At the end of FY 

2021-22, projections show an estimated fund balance of $5,848,440, with a long-term debt obligation of $250,000. In the 

FY 2022-23 Budget, a projected fund balance of $4,826,217, with a long-term debt obligation of $125,000, is being 

proposed. The budget includes an electric utility transfer of $765,790. Similar to most public utilities, this transfer, likened 

to property-like taxes or payments in lieu of taxes and the like have been made on an annual basis in Escanaba since 1956 so 

as to provide a direct benefit to the community including those properties that are exempt from paying property taxes. 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As discussed with the City Council over the last several years, I believe that local units of government are 

struggling because the State’s system for funding municipalities is broken and does not track with the economy. 

In Michigan, cities have very few sources of revenue—and those sources are shrinking. In recent years these 

sources have failed to keep up with the current level of services, much less rising costs. Also, Michigan law 

contains structural provisions, Headlee and Proposal A, that limit cities’ ability to collect taxes on existing 

properties. This past year, we were bracing ourselves for the impact of the shuttering of the economy due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic. The economy had good bones and remained strong, with consumer confidence remaining 

high until inflation and high fuel costs began setting in during 2021 and early 2022. With revenue sharing in 

Michigan being tied to sales tax, and families having limited disposable income due to inflation and high fuel 

costs, municipalities will soon feel the pinch. 
 

In addition to the losses incurred due to the broken revenue sharing system, the City continues to incur expenses related to 

Tax Tribunal cases for such things as attorney and appraisal fees (over $1,000,000 to date) and refunds to property owners. 

This is another example of poor legislation, or an absence of legislation, to provide a framework within which commercial 

tax cases should be decided. Michigan is the only state that allows the “dark store” argument to prevail in tax cases. There is 

currently 1 commercial case pending before the tax tribunal with an aggregate contested taxable value of $13,677,939, 

which equated to $232,525 of tax revenue at risk for the City. 

 
Additionally, we are experiencing increasing revenue cuts on an annual basis due to the escalating number of Disabled 

Veteran Property Tax exemptions (projected to be $70,000+ in the upcoming fiscal year). Here again, without replacement 

funding for this type of cut, cities like Escanaba are finding it difficult to fund expected services. We don’t disagree with our 

legislature when it comes to honoring our veterans, but the State should make municipalities whole when granting tax 

exemption like Veteran’s Property Tax exemptions. There are currently bills that have been introduced to remedy this 

situation. 

City-Wide State Shared Revenues 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year Ends June 30, 2021 

2
0

0
1

/0
2

 

2
0

0
2

/0
3

 

2
0

0
3

/0
4

 

2
0

0
4

/0
5

 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

2
0

1
7

/1
8

 

2
0

1
8

/1
9

 

2
0

1
9

/2
0

 

2
0

2
0

/2
1

 

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

4 

 

 
 

Over the last 2 decades, the City has made deep cuts which included the elimination of as many as 36 full-time City 

employee positions, the consolidation of departments and their management team, major changes to the City pension  

system and major changes to City/employee cost sharing in how medical insurance is paid for with the employee now 

paying 20% of the policy costs. Additionally, a change was negotiated in the five (5) collective bargaining agreements that 

changed the way vacation, personal days and sick leave are earned for newly hired employees in an attempt to control costs. 

This program also applies to newly hired non-union employees. 

 

Major/Local Street Funds. Street improvement continues to be a priority. Administration remains proactive in identifying 

funds for larger projects such as applying for competitive grants. Major Street Fund expenditures, which support the day-to- 

day activities such as maintenance and snow plowing, are proposed to be $2,356,804. At the end of FY 2021-22,  

projections show an estimated fund balance of $2,872,584. 

 

Additionally, the City of Escanaba maintains 55.05 miles of local streets. Local Street Fund expenditures, which support the 

day-to-day activities such as maintenance and snow plowing, are proposed to be $1,042,409. At the end of FY 2021-22, 

projections show an estimated fund balance of $296,299. 

 
Each spring, the City Engineering Department conducts “Pavement Surface Evaluation and Rating (PASER)” inspections  
of all paved City streets. Using the PASER system, each street is scored a rating of 1 through 10 to evaluate the pavement 
surface condition. Each street is then entered into a condition category (poor, fair and good) and is assigned a treatment 

option. From that list, street projects are prioritized and selected based on surface condition, curbing condition, traffic 
volume, opinion of cost to repair and funds availability. Currently, approximately 49% of our street surfaces are considered 
to be substandard and in need of repair and upgrade. The high lake levels are decreasing, which means the groundwater is 
subsiding as well. This should be easier on our roads. However, the rate of decrease we’ve experienced over the past couple 
of years could slow due to the icing over of the big lakes which prevents evaporation, leaving more water in the lakes. 

Administration will continue to monitor the actions of the Michigan Legislature and Governor Gretchen Whitmer on road 

funding initiatives to determine how street funding projections will be impacted. Cities and Road Commissions receive their 

funding through Act 51, which fairly distributes monies generated by gas and weight taxes and registration fees. However, 

there is an increasing push downstate to reformulate the Act 51 distribution formula which would greatly disadvantage the 

Upper Peninsula. There is also a push to suspend the State gas tax which would have a direct impact on the health of Act 51 

and the amount of money to be distributed. 

Disabled Veteran's Exemption Fiscal Impact (Losses) 

$80,000 

 
$70,000 

$67,592 
$65,213 

$60,000 
$58,441 

$50,000 $44,823 

$40,000 $35,499 

$30,416 $29,830 
$30,000 

$23,670 
$17,070 

 

 
$10,000 

 
 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Loss of Revenue 

Amount of Revenue Lost Since 2013 = $372,554 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

5 

 

Projected Example of Customer Classifcation and Usage - Effective July 2021 
 

City (Utility) 
Residential 

500 kWh/yr 

Commercial 

4,000 kWh/yr 

Large Power 

200,000 kWH & 463 kW 

Escanaba 

City of Escanaba 

 
 

$ 798.30 

 
 

$ 5,024.40 

 
 

$ 210,420.84 

Menominee 

WPS 

 
 

$ 820.62 

 
 

$ 5,882.40 

 
 

$ 244,828.44 

Gladstone 

City of Gladstone 

 

$ 846.96 

 

$ 6,277.44 

 

$ 232,632.00 

Manistique 

Cloverland REA 

 
 

$ 833.94 

 
 

$ 5,083.20 

 
 

$ 234,916.80 

Iron Mountain 

WE Energies 

 

$ 1,015.44 

 

$ 6,534.72 

 

$ 292,939.64 

Marquette 

Marquette BLP 

 
 

$ 960.00 

 
 

$ 7,215.00 

 
 

$ 326,619.00 

Ishpeming 

UPPCO 

 

$ 1,308.18 

 

$ 7,916.64 

 

$ 247,542.96 

 

Major and Local Street Projects in the budget include: 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

Resurfacing and Curb Repair City Wide - TBD $ 900,000 

Stephenson Ave. from 9th Ave. N to 17th Ave. N/ S. 10th St from 4th Ave. S to 9th Ave. S 
(partially funded by Small Urban Grant) 

$ 600,000 

Line storm sewer along cemetery fence $ 200,000 

 

Electric Fund. The Electric Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the electrical operation, is 

$14,224,196 representing an increase of 0.65% from the previous year’s budget. As of June 30, 2021, the overall City 

Electric Fund net assets exceed $18.5 million. The current cash balance is approximately $9.8 million. 

 

Of notable interest, the Electric Fund budget includes funding for: 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

AMI-Remote Read Meters $ 500,000 

New Equipment Garage $ 250,000 

Power Pole Replacement $ 150,000 

URD Replacement (Underground Primary Cables) $ 200,000 

West Side Substation Improvements $ 900,000 

Solar Generation-Phase 3-Land Purchase $ 200,000 

Power Pole Replacement – Ludington Street $ 150,000 

Street Light Replacement – City Wide $ 100,000 

Jenkins Drive Street Lights $ 250,000 

Service Bucket Truck $ 250,000 

Distribution System Improvements $ 250,000 

A 1.75% electrical rate increase is included in the upcoming FY 2022-23 Budget. 

 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

6 

 

Water Fund. The Water Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the Water Treatment Plant, is $3,452,408, 

representing an increase of 1.83% from the previous year’s budget. As of June 30, 2021, the overall City Water Fund net 

assets exceed $11.4 million. The current cash balance is approximately $3,850,000. 

Of notable interest, the Water Fund budget includes funding for: 
 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

Water Main Replacement – TBD $ 500,000 

Distribution System – Replace Water Meters $ 220,000 

Build 3-bay Garage $ 200,000 

Replace Water Plant Generator $ 250,000 

Fire Hydrant Painting $ 80,000 

¾ Ton Service Truck/Van $ 65,000 

 

Due to the ever-changing landscape at the statewide level concerning water safety, the State has introduced new 

requirements on drinking water safety as a result of the Flint, Michigan water crisis. This budget attempts to address some 

of those new requirements. Regardless of the State’s requirements, we must continue to upgrade such things as our water 

meters as part of a water loss reduction initiative as well as finding and eliminating our continued loss of potable water 

within our distribution system. Lead service line replacement has evolved from a Michigan/Flint issue into a national 

endeavor. What started out as an unfunded mandate here in Michigan is becoming a federal initiative with grant dollars 

backing it up. We will pursue all the grant money we can get, most of which will require a commitment for match money, 

which will hopefully reduce the need for any drastic future rate increases. 
 

 
 Cost of Water per 5,000 Gallons per Month  

 

Ishpeming 
  

$104.40 

Manistique $87.11  

Negaunee $79.58  

Ironwood $69.55  

Escanaba - 0% inc. $61.16  

Marquette $60.31  

Munising $58.92  

Sault Ste. Marie $56.68  

Gladstone $43.25  

Iron Mountain $33.18  

K.I. Sawyer $31.95  

Kingsford $17.85  

 
In the proposed FY 2022-23 budget, no water rate increase is being proposed. 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

7 

 

Cost of Wastewater per 5,000 Gallons per Month 

Wastewater Fund. The Wastewater Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant, is $2,437,585, representing an increase of 9.29% from the previous year’s budget. As of June 30, 2021, the overall 

City Wastewater Fund net assets exceed $7.85 million. The current cash balance is approximately $1,043,000. 

 

Of notable interest, the Wastewater Fund budget includes funding for: 
 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

Digester Boiler Replacement $ 800,000 

Remove & Land Apply Biosolids from Digesters #1 & #2 $ 200,000 

Lake Shore Drive Lift Station Improvements $ 50,000 

CIPP (Cured In-Place) and Manhole Restoration, Sites TBD $ 980,000 

Replace Sludge Truck $ 200,000 

¾ Ton Pickup Truck $ 65,000 

 
 

Due to increases in operating costs, a wastewater rate increase of 25% is included in the budget to meet departmental 

obligations and needs. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Munising 
    $91.68 

Marquette 
    $87.15 

Ironwood 
    $85.69 

Ishpeming 
   $77.58  

Sault Ste. Marie 
  $67.15   

K.I. Sawyer 
  $66.95   

Escanaba - 25% inc. 
  $63.75   

Gladstone 
  $62.00   

Escanaba 21/22 
 $50.97    

Kingsford $31.70     

Iron Mountain $29.09     



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

8 

 

Solid Waste Collection. No increase in garbage/recycling collection rates are proposed in the upcoming FY 2022-23 

Budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motor Vehicle/Motorized Equipment. Within the budget is a Motor Vehicle/Motorized Equipment Fund. The purpose of 

the fund is to pay for salaries, wages and operations required for the repair and replacement, purchase and operation of 

motor vehicle equipment and motorized equipment, and for the purchase of equipment, materials and supplies to be used in 

the administration and operation of the fund. This fund is primarily funded by each department under a rental and rate 

schedule for each unit in the fund. 

 

The Motor Vehicle/Motorized Equipment budget is $1,153,405 representing an increase of 8.16% over the current fiscal 

year. At the end of FY 2020-21, the Motor Vehicle/ Motorized Equipment net asset balance was $1,125,540. In the FY 

2022-23 budget, we are projecting a cash balance of $144,082. There have been some structural adjustments made to this 

fund in order to provide the revenue required to support the demands placed on the fund. There may be more adjustments 

made in the future if it is determined they are needed. 

 

The budget includes the purchase or upgrade of the following piece of equipment: 
 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

Police Patrol Vehicle-SUV $ 45,000 

Engineer Vehicle Replacement $ 50,000 

Garbage Carts/Wheels $ 35,000 

Sandblaster $ 10,000 

 

Library Fund. The Library Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the Library, is $672,287. As of June 

30, 2022, the Library Fund balance is projected to equal $103,428. At the end of next fiscal year, June 30, 2023, the Library 

Fund Balance is projected to be $61,945. Finishing in the black is contingent upon on a larger appropriation from the City’s 

General Fund, and significant cuts in supplies and services. The Escanaba Public Library is a community hub, offering 

essential early literacy programs for children and families, cultural enrichment and lifelong learning opportunities for all 

ages, and serving as a conduit to the technological resources and expertise citizens need to function in a digital world. 

 

For FY 2022-23, the Library will continue progress on implementing the partnerships and initiatives outlined in its strategic 

plan, with priority placed on technology instruction, local history preservation and marketing. The Library continues to 

build meaningful community connections that enable early literacy and after-school enrichment programs. Outside Wi-Fi 

was made available for public use this year and it has been well-utilized. 

 

The City's General Fund continues to be the primary funding source for the operations costs of the Library. Funding for 

enhanced programs and services is provided by the Friends of the Escanaba Public Library and further developed through 

grants and partnerships with local and regional partners. 

Garbage Rate History 
$5.00 

$4.50 

$4.00 

$3.50 

$3.00 

$2.50 

$2.00 

$1.50 

$1.00 

$0.50 

 
 
 

Residential Monthly Bill 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 

2
0

1
7

/1
8

 

2
0

1
8

/1
9

 

2
0

1
9

/2
0

 

2
0

2
0

/2
1

 

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 

2
0

2
2

/2
3

 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Department of Public Safety. The Escanaba Department of Public Safety was created in the mid-1970’s, at which time the 

police and fire departments were merged. In the budget, the Department of Public Safety represents 48% of the City’s 

General Fund appropriation. In dollars, this translates to $4,724,115 in the upcoming fiscal year. In the 2021-22 fiscal year 

budget, the department had 32 sworn officers including Officers, Command Staff, Detectives, Captain and the Director. In 

addition, a Community Preservation Officer was added to the Department. Our sworn officer (all ranks) to citizen ratio will 

be approximately 1 to 385. 

 

PERFORMANCE MATTERS 
PUBLIC SAFETY – CRIME, TRAFFIC, AND FIRE 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
Violent Crimes Per 1,000 2.90 2.02 3.15 2.7 3.39 4.76 4.6 
Property Crimes Per 1,000 41.7 52.4 57.2 37.0 23.28 15.35 23.8 
Traffic Injuries / Fatalities 73 51 46 75 33 12 32 
Traffic Tickets - City Infraction 773 705 654 863 1,226 1,052 941 
Traffic Tickets - Misdemeanor 185 145 128 191 170 173 185 

Call Volume - Incident 7,512 8,212 8,408 8,281 7,847 8,070 7,416 

Call Volume - Quick Call 14,55 14,81 14,83 15,15 16,18 8,382 8,043 
Fire Calls 99 140 138 184 114 95 116 
Escanaba Public Safety Case Clearance Rate 52% 56% 52% 49% 50% 46% 41.3% 
Statewide Case Clearance Rate (Averages) 36% 37% 36% 37% 35% 37% 32.4% 

 
Municipal Marina Operations. The Marina Fund accounts for the activities of the Escanaba Municipal Marina. The 

publicly-owned Marina has 165 slips, including areas used to broadside tie against the basin seawall. The Municipal  Marina 

offers a full array of services, including seasonal slip rental, transient slip rental, fuel, pump out services, bath facilities, 

water and electric hook up and laundry equipment. 

 

The Marina Fund budget is $278,904. At the end of FY 2020-21, the Marina Fund cash balance was $171,206 with a long- 

term debt obligation of $186,006. At the end of FY 2021-22, projections show an estimated cash balance of $189,295, with 

a long-term debt obligation of $169,780. In the FY 2022-23 budget, a projected cash balance of $233,656, with a long term 

debt obligation of $153,069 is being proposed. 

Penal Fines City Contribution County Contribution 

 

 

 

$350,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Select Library Revenues 

$
3

6
5

,0
0

0
 

$
1

3
3

,1
5

8
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 
$

- 

$
3

6
5

,0
0

0
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 
$

- 
$

9
9

,0
9

0
 

$
3

7
1

,0
0

0
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 
$

- 
$

9
9

,1
9

4
 

$
4

0
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
$

- 
$

9
9

,4
0

0
 

$
4

0
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

1
6

/1
7

 
$

- 
$

1
2

1
,3

5
0

 

$
4

0
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

1
7

/1
8

 
$

- 
$

1
1

8
,5

4
9

 

$
4

0
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

1
8

/1
9

 
$

- 
$

1
1

3
,7

4
9

 

$
4

0
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

1
9

/2
0

 
$

- 
$

8
7

,7
0

5
 

$
4

5
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

2
0

/2
1

 
$

- 
$

9
2

,8
1

3
 

$
4

5
0

,0
0

0
 

2
0

2
1

/2
2

 
Es

t.
 

$
5

2
,2

5
6

 
$

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Michigan Waterways Commission recommends rates for harbors. In 2020-21, the Commission was recommending no 

increase to Rate 8 in the DNR Waterways fee schedule. There was an increase in the fee schedule for 2022/23 that has been 

implemented. Some of the docks located within the Marina are reaching or have exceeded their recommended normal 

service life. To address these types of concerns, the Harbormaster was tasked with completing a debt restructuring plan 

which was done in late 2016. This was done so that the Harbormaster could put together a Capital Replacement, Repair and 

Improvement Plan for future upgrades. The Plan has been completed and accepted by the City Council, and will likely result 

in the necessity to increase future rates. The Pier 2 Dock Replacement project was completed in the summer of 2019. High 

water levels have resulted in ongoing access and usability issues with the new dock. Remedies were implemented in 

Summer 2020, but success varied. In 2021, water levels on the Great Lakes are showing early signs of going down. Some 

damage was experienced over the winter of 2020-21, but the company that did the dock install did warranty work and 

repaired the damage with assistance from North Shore Maine. We’ll be monitoring this spring to ensure the work  

performed successfully re-engineered the workmanship to ensure no future problems. 

Dock Fees 

Year Ending 

Expenditures Revenues 

$600,000 

 
$500,000 

 
$400,000 

 
$300,000 

 
$200,000 

 
$100,000 

 
$- 

10 Year History - Total Expenditures, 
Total Revenues and Dock Fees 

Seasonal Boaters - Slips Occupied 
165 
 

150 
 

135 
 

120 
106 

105 
102 100 

90 
87 

75 
 

60 
 

45 
 

30 
 

15 
 

0 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Year 

46 

84 87 86 
92 89 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

Sl
ip

s 
O

cc
u

p
ie

d
 (

o
u

t 
o

f 
1

65
) 

Ye
ar

 E
n

d
in

g 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

2
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

3
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

4
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

5
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

7
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

0
 

6
/3

0
/2

0
2

1
 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

11 

 

Downtown Development Authority Fund. The Downtown Development Authority Fund budget, which supports the day- 

to-day activities of the Downtown Development Authority, is $289,255, representing a decrease of 2.23% from the previous 

year’s budget. At the end of the 2020/21 fiscal year, the fund balance was $176,551. 

 

Of notable interest, the Downtown Development Authority budget includes funding for: 
 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

Entrance sign replacement $ 30,000 

Funding for Police Patrols in DDA area $ 10,000 

Contribution to the Major Street Fund to do district street/curb work $ 25,000 

 

Escanaba Building Authority Fund. The Escanaba Building Authority Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day 

activities and maintenance cost associated with the City Hall/Library Complex, is $374,210, representing a decrease of 

1.18% from the previous year’s budget. 

 

Master Fee Schedule. Included with the budget is a “Master Fee Schedule” for services that are provided to City of 

Escanaba residents and non-residents alike. The intent is to have the fees reviewed annually by the City Council and 

adopted by resolution (unless otherwise mandated by State or Federal law) as part of the budget approval process. While the 

primary mission of government is to satisfy community needs, many City services solely benefit specific individuals or 

businesses and are subject to separate fees. As a matter of practice, the City will continue the policy of not subsidizing 

activities of private interest through general tax and utility rate revenues. Fees that do not recover the cost of providing the 

service result in a subsidy, which shifts away from other critical and high priority programs that may not have similar cost 

recovery options. 

 

Personnel and Staffing. Full-time staffing levels in the budget include 117 employees. Part-time staffing levels are at 16 

employees. Seasonal employee levels will fluctuate throughout the year, depending on the operational needs of the various 

departments. Routinely, City Administration examines all job vacancies closely to ensure that our human resources are 

aligned with our operational needs and our financial means. 

 

. 

Part-Time Full-Time 

0 

18 17 17 
20 

19 21 21 20 19 
26 

31 

100 
 

80 
 

60 
 

40 

109 
118 116 114 112 

116 115 115 113 115 120 

140 

City of Escanaba Employee Counts 

2
0

1
2

/1
3 

2
0

1
3

/1
4 

2
0

1
4

/1
5 

2
0

1
5

/1
6 

2
0

1
6

/1
7 

2
0

1
7

/1
8 

2
0

1
8

/1
9 

2
0

1
9

/2
0 

2
0

2
0

/2
1 

2
0

2
1

/2
2 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

12 

 

Health Insurance. The budget takes into account a health premium increase of 4.9%, depending on coverage, as a result of 

a contractual price increase from the Michigan Conference of Teamsters. In the budget, employee health insurance premium 

contributions will continue to be 20% of premium costs. 

 

Pension Obligations. Over the last decade, the City has taken the necessary steps needed to address the unfunded pension 

obligations throughout the various pension plans. The City offers its non-public safety officer full-time employees hired 

prior to July 1, 2005 a defined benefit retirement pension through the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of 

Michigan (MERS). Based on the latest annual actuarial valuation report from MERS dated December 31, 2020, the City's 

plan is 62% funded, even with the previous year. Employees full-time and part-time hired July 1, 2005 or later are  provided 

with a MERS defined contribution plan. Under this plan, the City contributes a mandatory 4% of wages and will match the 

employee up to an additional 3%. Public Safety officers hired prior to July 1, 2014 participate in the Act 345 pension. Based 

on the latest annual actuarial valuation report date June 30, 2021, the plan is 92.1% funded, up from the 91.0% reported the 

previous year. Public Safety officers hired July 1, 2015 or later are provided with a defined  contribution plan through 

ICMA. Under this plan, the City contributes a mandatory 10% of wages and the employee contributes a mandatory 6% of 

wages with the option to contribute as much as they like. As a result of the pension plan changes and marketplace 

conditions, funding the closed out plans continues to be an increasingly larger percent of payroll and a general stress to the 

overall budget city-wide. The aforementioned defined benefits and defined contribution plans are the only post-retirement 

benefits offered to employees. Retiree health insurance is not offered and never has been therefore, no OPEB liability exists 

for that purpose. 

 

Budget Schedule. The budget has been developed with input from the City employees, City Council, City Boards, 

Commissions, and Committees and the public. This input is invaluable in terms of identifying the needs and desires of the 

community. The following schedule of reviews/actions has or will take place: 
 

CITY OF ESCANABA 

2022-23 Budget Calendar 
 

December 28th (Tues)- Budget papers to department heads; operating budgets due 1/24/22. 
 

January 4th (Tues)- Publish notice of first Public Hearing for the 2022-23 City budgets 

  at the 1/20/22 regular Council meeting. 
 

January 7th (Fri)- CP instructions and forms sent to department heads. 
 

January 11th
 (Tues)- City Council Budget Work Session 3:00 p.m. 

 

January 20th    (Thur)- (Regular Council Meeting) First Public Hearing for citizen input 

  into the 2022-23 City budgets. 
 

January 24th
   (Mon)- Departmental operating budgets and CIP due. 

 

February 4th (Fri)- Publish notice of second Public Hearing for the 2022-23 City budgets at the 2/17/22 regular 

Council meeting. 
 

February 7th
 (Mon)- First draft of budget requests to City Manager. 

 

February 17th (Thur)- (Regular Council Meeting) Second Public Hearing for citizen input 

  into the 2022-23 City budgets. 
 

March 4th (Fri)- Publish notice of third Public Hearing for the 2022-23 City 

  budgets at the 3/17/22 regular Council meeting. 
 

March 10th (Thurs)- Planning Commission reviews CIP at regular meeting. Will request further information for 

4/7/22 meeting or will recommend approval to City Council. 
 

March 17th (Thur)- (Regular Council Meeting) Third Public Hearing for citizen input 

  into the 2022-23 City budgets. 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

13 

 

March 18th (Fri)- Council receives tentative copy of the City budgets. 
 

April 4th (Mon)- Budget work session open to the public. 
 

April 5th (Tues)- Budget work session open to the public. 
 

April 6th (Wed)- Budget work session, if required, open to the public. 
 

April 7th (Thurs) Planning Commission reviews and recommends CIP approval to City Council (if necessary). 
 

April 21st (Thur)- (Regular Council Meeting) Council passes resolution to set May 5th
 

as the fourth Public Hearing on the 2022-23 City budgets. 

 

April 22nd (Fri)- Budgets are revised, based on the work sessions, and are made 

available to the public. 

 

April 22nd (Fri)- Publish notice of Public Hearings on budgets. 
 

May 5th (Thur)- (Regular Council Meeting) Public Hearing on 2022-23 City budgets. 
 

May 9th (Mon)- Publish notice of final hearing and adoption of 2022-23 City 

budgets. This notice must be at least 10 days prior to the 

budget adoption and must contain language to the effect 

that the tax rate will be a subject at this meeting, 

assuming that the City does not intend to roll back the 

millage by the base tax reduction fraction. 

 

May 19th (Thur)- Public Hearing and adoption of City budgets. First reading of the 

Appropriations Ordinance, including the millage rate, 
and first reading of the Tax Levy Ordinance, with 

second reading and adoption set for the May 26th special 
meeting. First reading of Utility Ordinances, with 
second reading and adoption set for the Monday, June 

6th special meeting. 
 

May 26th (Thur)- (Special Council Meeting) Second reading and adoption of the Tax 

Levy Ordinance and the Appropriations Ordinance. 
 

June 6th (Mon)- (Special Council Meeting) Second reading and adoption of the 

Utility Ordinances. 

 

 
While it is my privilege to author this budget message, thanks must be given to the City Council, Department Heads, City 

employees, City Boards, Commission and Committee Members, and community members who committed themselves to 

assisting in this budget process. Collectively, as a team, I remain confident that the City will continue to utilize the 

combined knowledge and experience in meeting the challenges that lay ahead in providing more efficient City services 

and growing the community economically. As City Manager, I am fortunate to have a Council, community and dedicated 

employee support in providing the residents with the necessary resources, flexibility and funding which allows us all to 

live in a community that we can be proud of. 

 

 

 
 
 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

14 

 

Electric Superintendent, Jerry Pirkola – 9:06 a.m. 
 

Mr. Pirkola reviewed the 2022/23 proposed City Electric Budget with Council. The following was 
discussed: 

 

• Income, Capital Expenditures, and Operating Statements; 

• Discussed Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI); 

• Electric Rate increase; 

• Capacity Purchases, Energy used; 

• Pole replacements; 

• Discussed bidding out projects; 

• Rate Study; 

• Discussed Meter Replacement and Charges; 

• Transmission and Distribution Statements; 

• Discussed installing more streetlights in areas of town without proper lighting; 

• Discussed the sale of property; 

• New Equipment garage; 

• Discussed underground conduit / conductors. 
 
 
Public Works, Robert Becotte – 10:15 a.m. 
 

Mr. Becotte reviewed the 2022/23 proposed City Department of Public Works and Engineering 
Budget with Council. The following was discussed: 

 

• Discussed General Budget; 

• Crosswalks, engineering budget, trees and shrubs, landfill and road, solid waste collection, 
mulching, ally paving, and park maintenance;  

• Discussed possible updates to municipal dock with engineering study; 

• Discussed resurfacing projects; 

• Discussed street paving and small urban project; 

• Discussed upcoming projects; 

• Discussed motor vehicle fund. 
 
 
City Clerk, Phil DeMay –  11:20 a.m.  
 
Mr. DeMay reviewed the 2022/23 proposed City Clerk and IT Budget with Council. The following 
was discussed: 
 

• Request for increase in postage; 

• Updated Council on Elections. Primary and General Election in August and 

November. Should have a good turnout; 

• Request for Annual Code of Ordinances Supplement Code of Ordinances on the 

Internet; 

• Request for Travel Expenses, Clerk’s Institute & Summer Conference; 

• Updated Council on CMC certification; 

• Key Fobs; 

• Move server and equipment in council chambers. 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

15 

 

Marina Fund – Shayne Sanville – 11:38 a.m. 
 
Mr. Sanville reviewed the Marina Budget with Council and discussed the following items: 
 

• Reviewed Marina Fund-Income Statement, dock fees, services; 

• Dock repairs and maintenance; 

• Discussed condition of docks; 

• Updated Council on Security Cameras at the Marina; 

• Printer for contracts and pamphlets; 

• Discussed staffing; 

• Discussed how to make the Harbor more attractive to boaters. 
 
 

Council consensus to break for lunch at 11:48 a.m. 
 
Council came back into regular session at 12:28 p.m. 
 
 

Water/Wastewater Superintendent, Jeff Lampi – 12:29 p.m. 
 
Mr. Lampi reviewed the following 2022/23 proposed Water/Wastewater budget items with 
Council: 
 
Water Department: 

• Income, Operation, and Capital Expenditure Statements; 

• Discussed Water Main Replacements; 

• Ludington Street Reconstruction; 

• Fire Hydrants appearance; 

• Discussed new water meters; 

• Discussed Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI); 

• Increase in training; 

• Discussed Grant Money; 

• Proposed projects and capital purchases; 

• Plant Generator Upgrade; 

• Flushing Hydrants; 

• Office Equipment Upgrades.  
 

WasteWater Department: 

• Proposed projects, capital purchases and proposed budget increase; 

• Engineering Costs for Plant Improvements; 

• Wastewater Rate Increase; 

• Lift Station Upgrade; 

• CIPP & Manhole Restoration-Sites; 

• Ludington Street Reconstruction Project; 

• Collection System Infiltration Study; 

• Discussed Sump-Pump issues; 

• Plant upgrades; 

• Discussed water flow to the sewer system; 

• Snow box for loader for snow removal; 

• Sludge truck upgrade; 

• Replacing technology. 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

16 

 

The time being 2:37 p.m., the Council recessed. 
 
The Council came back into regular session at 2:44 p.m. and reviewed the following budgets. 

 
 
City Manager Jordan briefly reviewed his Department Fiscal Year Budget. 

 

City Controller, Melissa Becotte – 2:47 p.m. 
 

• Discussed MERS; 

• Discussed auditor fees; 

• MERS pension plan; 

• General Fund; 

• Taxes and mileage.  

 

City Assessor, James McNeil –  3:16 p.m. 
 
Assessor McNeil reviewed Department budget with Council.  The following was discussed: 
 

• Tax Tribunal update; 

• U.P. Assessors Association Memberships & Dues;  

• Education & Training; 

• Assistant Assessor update; 

• Board of Review Budget. 

• Mileage rate discussion; 

• Professional Services Update. 

 

Planning/Zoning Administrator, Roxanne Spencer – 3:28 p.m. 
 
Planning/Zoning Administrator Spencer provided an overview of her department with Council: 
 

• Seasonal Employee discussion; 

• BSA Software update; 

• Zoning Ordinance Overhaul; 

• Master Fee Schedule Changes; 

• Discussed Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

Council continued to review the following General Fund Budget requests: 
 
GENERAL DISCUSSION  
 

• Discussed an additional Public Works employee; 

• Seasonal Wages discussion; 

• Non-Union pay scale; 

• Teamster wage scale. 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

17 

 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
Hearing no further public comment and the time being 3:47 p.m., Flath moved, the Council 
recessed until 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, April 5, 2022. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted 

 
 

 
 
Phil DeMay      Approved: _____________________ 
City Clerk        Mark Ammel, Mayor 



City of Escanaba 
Special Council Meeting 
Tuesday, April 5, 2022 

 
Pursuant to a meeting notice posted March 10, 2022, the Council of the City of 
Escanaba reconvened in special session in Room 101 of City Hall at 9:00 a.m., to 
continue the review and discussion of the proposed 2022/23 City Budget. 

 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Controller Melissa Becotte, City 

Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, media, and members of the public 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
DuBord moved to come back into session, time being 9:00 a.m. 
 
The following Department Heads presented their budgets: 
 

Public Safety Police Chief, Robert LaMarche – 9:00 a.m. 
 
Public Safety Director Robert LaMarche reviewed the 2022/23 proposed Public 
Safety budget with Council. The following was reviewed: 
 

• School Safety Officer update; 

• Discussed staffing; 

• Dispatch update; 

• Insurance update; 

• Fire Fighter and Police equipment update; 

• Body Camera and Dash Cam upgrade; 

• Traffic Safety Signs; 

• Discussed Grants; 

• Public Safety Training; 

• Fire Fighting Training; 

• Code Enforcement discussion; 

• Crossing Guard update; 

• Squad Car Purchase. 
 

 
Library Director, Carolyn Stacey – 9:58 a.m. 
 
Library Director Carolyn Stacey reviewed the 2022/23 proposed Library Budget with 
Council. The following was reviewed: 
 

• Overview of the Department, Library Strategic Planning process, daily programs, 
services, and technology’s, and strategies the library provides the community 
and Delta County; 

• Discussed Library Fees; 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

 2 

• Discussed Penal Fines; 

• Library Revenues and Fund Balance; 

• State of Michigan Library Funding; 

• Drive-thru model update; 

• Enhanced Wi-Fi update; 

• Virtual Library update; 

• Grounds Project update; 

• Discussed Staff positions; 

• Outreach Vehicle update; 

• Summer Calendar update. 
 
 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA) – Scott Czasak – 10:10 a.m. 

 
Scott Czasak reviewed the DDA Budget with Council and discussed the following 
budget line items: 

  

• Revenue and Fund Balance; 

• Discussed Deficit Elimination Plan; 

• Continue to fund the Façade Program; 

• Security at the Marketplace; 

• Downtown Patrol; 

• Discussed Downtown Signage; 

• Website update; 

• Sink Hole update; 

• Update on DDA director position; 

• Grant opportunities. 
 

The time being 10:21 a.m., the Council recessed. 
 

The Council came back into regular session at 10:27 p.m. and reviewed the following 
budgets. 

 
Recreation Director, Kim Peterson – 10:28 a.m. 
 
Recreation Director Peterson reviewed the following Recreational Department budgets 
she was responsible for with Council: 

 

• Provided an overview of Departmental activities and Civic Center Improvements; 

• Request for Fourth of July/New Year’s Eve; 

• Request for Summer Sports: Veterans Court Resurfacing, Lawn mower for the 
soccer field, Dickenson Field update; 

• Request for Winter Sports: New 4-wheeler for grooming and snow removal; 

• Request for Beach: Benches down at the park, Lifeguard shortage, staffing 
update; 

• Splash Park update; 

• Refinishing gym floors at Civic Center; 

• Cabling project and Wi-Fi upgrade; 

• Kitchen, flooring, and backup generator update. 
 



Annual 2022/23 Budget Work Session 
 

 3 

Human Resources Director/City Treasurer, Kim Gustafson – 11:04 a.m. 
 
Human Resource Director/ City Treasurer Kim Gustafson reviewed the following HR 
and Treasurer Department budgets she was responsible for with Council: 
 

• Human Resources and Treasurer’s Department Budgets; 

• Retirement update; 

• Printing and publishing; 

• Software costs; 

• Professional Services additional costs; 

• Capital Expenditures; 

• New combined position update; 

• Boiler Replacement and update; 

• Seasonal Employees wage scale discussion. 
 
 
GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 
During discussion, it was Council consensus to make the following changes to the 
Proposed 2022/23 Fiscal Year Budget: 
 

• Public Works Additional Hire; 

• Seasonal Wages; 

• Library Staff; 

• MERS discussion. 
 
 
After further discussion, DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve all changes to the 
Proposed 2022/23 Fiscal Year Budget. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
  
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel  
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

 
Hearing no further public comment, DuBord moved, the Council adjourned at 11:52 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved:  _______________________ 
City Clerk       Mark Ammel, Mayor  



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 
Thursday, April 7, 2022 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Moore moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from March 17, 2022, as submitted. 
 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

DuBord moved,  Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Stosh Wasic – discussed the sale of recreational marihuana in the City of Escanaba. 
 
Christine Williams - discussed the sale of recreational marihuana in the City of Escanaba. 
 
Duane Beauchamp - discussed the sale of recreational marihuana in the City of 
Escanaba. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
UB-1 Discussion – Commercial Marihuana Establishments within the City Limits of 
Escanaba. 
 

City Council held a discussion on allowing commercial marihuana establishments to 
operate in the City of Escanaba in accordance with the Michigan Regulation and 
Taxation of the Marihuana Act. 



City Council Minutes  
April 7, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

UB-1 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to terminate the sunset clause to opt-in to 
allowing marihuana dispensaries within city limits contingent to the adoption of an opt-
in ordinance and zoning approval.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 

Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: Moore, Beauchamp 
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
UB-2 First Reading - Ordinance No. 1259 - Zoning Ordinance Amendment - Multiple 
Chapters - Planning & Zoning. 
 

The Planning Commission recommended amendments to multiple chapters of the 
Zoning Ordinance. Administration requested City Council to consider this the first 
reading of Ordinance No. 1259, An Ordinance to Amend Chapters I-XXII of the Zoning 
Ordinance as Codified Under Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances. Administration 
requested that the City Council set May 5, 2022, for the second reading, public 
hearing, and adoption of Ordinance No. 1259. 

 
UB-2 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to consider this the first reading of Ordinance 
No. 1259, An Ordinance to Amend Chapters I-XXII of the Zoning Ordinance as 
Codified Under Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances and to set May 5, 2022, for the 
second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance No. 1259. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 

Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Approval – Set a Public Hearing Date for Condemnation of 1607 North 20th 
Street – Public Safety. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval to set a Public Hearing date for May 19, 
2022,  to review the property at 1607 North 20th Street for possible condemnation. 
 
NB-1 Flath moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set a 
Public Hearing date for May 19, 2022, to review the property at 1607 North 20th Street 
for possible condemnation. 
 

 



City Council Minutes  
April 7, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

3 

NB-2 Approval – WWTP Asphalt – Wastewater. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval for monies to complete the needed 
asphalt as part of the Wastewater Treatment Plant Project in an amount not to exceed 
$250,000.00. 
 
NB-2 Moore moved to approve monies to complete the needed asphalt as part of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Project in an amount not to exceed $250,000.00.  
 
Motion not seconded;  
 
MOTION FAILED. 
 
 

NB-3 Approval – Annual Chemical Bids – Water/Wastewater. 
 

Administration sought Council consent to accept the following annual chemical bids: 
 

a. Hawkins, Inc., Roseville, MN to furnish approximately 35,000 pounds of Hydro-
Fluosilicic acid for use in drinking water treatment of $42.50/ hundred in totes. 

 
b. Aquachem of America, Inc., Appleton, WI to furnish approximately 100 net tons of 

Aluminum Sulfate liquid in the amount of $430.00 per dry ton. 
 

c. Thatcher Co., Salt Lake City, Utah to furnish approximately 95 tons of Dense Soda 
Ash in 50-pound bags for use in drinking water treatment in the amount of $25.32 
/ cwt 50-lb bags. 
 

d. PVS Technologies, Inc., Detroit, MI to furnish approximately 50 tons of dry weight 
Ferric Chloride in the amount of $884.00 / dry ton. 
 

e. Hawkins, Inc., Roseville, MN to furnish approximately 10 tons of liquid Chlorine in 
amount of $100.00 per cwt in 150-pound cylinders. 
 

NB-3(a-e) DuBord moved, Flath seconded, that the Chemical Bid agenda items be 
approved as proposed in the unit prices as stated. 
 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 

Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES –  
 

Mayor Ammel, with Council Consensus made the following reappointments: 



City Council Minutes  
April 7, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

4 

Tony Walker reappointed to the Downtown Development Authority, term ending April 
21, 2026; 
 
Tyler Johnson reappointed to the Downtown Development Authority, term ending April 
21, 2026. 
 

 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
William Gasman – discussed commercial marihuana establishments within the city limits 
of Escanaba.  
 
Christine Williams - discussed commercial marihuana establishments within the city limits 
of Escanaba.  
 
Aaron Dieter – discussed Kiwanis Home and Garden Show and discussed commercial 
marihuana establishments within the city limits of Escanaba.  
 
Joe Kaplan - discussed commercial marihuana establishments within the city limits of 
Escanaba.  
 
 
PROCLAMATION  
 

Mayor Ammel proclaimed April 29, 2022, as “Arbor Day”. 
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• Kiwanis Home and Garden Show Friday 5:00 pm at the UP-State Fairgrounds.  

• Council Member Beauchamp asked Administration to revisit what is being 
proposed and find a way to reduce the deficit in the budget.  

• April 28th groundbreaking ceremony for a monument in the park (Municipal Dock) 
at 1:00pm.  

• Resident asked City Council to pass a resolution in support of “Police Week” May 
15th-21st. 

• Esky Cleanup week starts May 16th-21st.  
 
 
Hearing no further public comment DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 8:19 p.m. 

 



City Council Minutes  
April 7, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

5 

Respectfully submitted 
 

 
 

Phil DeMay     Approved: _________________________  
City Clerk       Mark Ammel, Mayor 



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Special Council Meeting 

Wednesday, April 13, 2022 
 
Pursuant to a meeting notice posted on April 11, 2022, the meeting was called to order 
by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall 
located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Clerk Phil DeMay, and Department 

Heads. 
 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the 
City Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
NB-1 Approval – Construction Work for Lead Service Line Replacement DWSRF - 
Water. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to award the contract to Oberstar, Inc. 
of Marquette, MI, in the amount of $3,812,589.30. The contract award should be made 
contingent upon receipt of the project financing from the State of Michigan under the 
State Revolving Loan program. 
 
NB-1 Moore moved, DuBord seconded, to approve to award the contract to Oberstar, 
Inc. of Marquette, MI, in the amount of $3,812,589.30, contingent upon receipt of the 
project financing from the State of Michigan under the State Revolving Loan program. 
 

RESOLUTION 22-03 
 

A RESOLUTION TO TENTATIVELY AWARD 
A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 



City Council Minutes  
April 13, 2022 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

WHEREAS, the City of Escanaba, MI wishes to construct improvements to its 
existing water treatment and distribution system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the water system improvements project formally adopted on April 13, 
2022 will be funded through the state of Michigan’s Drinking Water Revolving Loan 
Fund (DWRF) program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Escanaba, MI has sought and received construction bids for 
the proposed improvements and has received a low Base bid plus Deductive Alternate 
Base Bid in the amount of $3,812,589.30 from Oberstar Inc., Marquette, MI; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s engineer, C2AE has recommended awarding the contract to 
the low bidder. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Escanaba, MI tentatively 
awards the contract for construction of the proposed water system improvements 
project to Oberstar, Inc., Marquette, MI, contingent upon successful financial 
arrangements with the DWRF. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:  Moore, DuBord, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays:  None   
Abstain: None 
Absent:  None 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 

Hearing no further public comment Flath moved, the Council adjourned at 6:27 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted 

 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: _____________________  
City Clerk        Mark Ammel, Mayor 































































































ORDINANCE NO. 1260 
  

CHAPTER I 

Division 6 of the Escanaba Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by adding an 
ordinance adopted for the purpose of authorizing and regulating the operation of Side by 
Sides on roads in City of Escanaba, for the purpose of providing penalties for the violation 
thereof, and for the distribution of public funds resulting from those penalties pursuant to 
2008 PA 240, MCL 324.81 131 which is incorporated by reference in its entirety. 
  
 
THE CITY Of ESCANABA ORDAINS THE FOLLOWING: 

 
SEC. 27.412: DEFINITIONS 
As used in this ordinance, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
a. “Driver license” means an operator’s or chauffeur’s license or permit issued to an 
individual by the Secretary of State under chapter III of the Michigan vehicle code, 1949 
PA 300, MCL, 257.301 to 257.329, for that individual to operate a vehicle, whether or not 
conditions are attached to the license or permit. 
 
b. “Operate” means to ride in or on, and be in actual physical control of the operation of 
a Side by Side, 
 
c. “Operator” means a person who operates or is in actual physical control of the 
operation of a Side by Side. 
 
d. “Side by Side” means a motor driven off road recreational, self-propelled, operator-
controlled, non- articulated vehicle intended primarily to travel on unpaved surfaces on 
four or more wheels; in addition, it is designed to transport persons and/or cargo and pull 
and push equipment and controlled by a steering wheel and pedals, designed for 
recreational or utility purposes and shall carry no more than 6 people including the driver, 
sitting side by side on one or more non-straddle seats 
 
e. “Road” means a county primary road or county local road as described in section 5 of 
1951 PA 51, MCL 247.655, 
 
f. “City Council” means the City of Escanaba City Council. 
 
g. “County” means the County of Delta. 
 
h. “Maintained portion” means on a: 1. Paved road with fog lines – between the lines, 
white line to white line. 2. Paved road without fog lines – edge of asphalt to edge of 
asphalt. 3. Gravel road – bladed portion of the road. 
 
i. “Trailhead” means state, county or city designated trail or route for licensed/permitted 
ORV’s  to operate on the trail or route. 
 
SEC. 27.413: OPERATION 1 
A Side by Side shall only be operated on City streets using the most direct route from the 
trailhead to and from lodging, to obtain food at restaurants or stores, to obtain fuel and 
repairs, and to a residence, on the far right of the maintained portion of a roadway and 
the gravel portion of paved roads within the City when available except for the following: 
 
a. As designated by the map, attached Exhibit A, with special attention to the following 
roads that shall not be accessible or traveled by a Side by Side: Ludington Park roadways 
except access is permitted onto Begumier Way to the north parking lot to allow access to 
the ice on Little Bay De Noc; Loren W Jenkin Memorial Drive to Sand Island to access 
the ice on Lake Michigan; and Bath House Rd to the parking lot east of the Bandshell for 
access to the ice on Lake Michigan.  
 
b. Side by Sides shall not operate on the City streets from December 1 thru March 31. 
 
c. Any roadway, shoulder, or right-of-way of any State or Federal highway including but 
not limited to US 2 including US 41, M 35. 



Ordinance No. 1260 

2 
 

d. A Side by Side operated on the permitted City streets shall follow all traffic laws-state, 
local, and county.  Side by Sides shall not operate on sidewalks, paths or trials unless 
otherwise posted. 
 
SEC 27.414: OPERATION 2 
Except as set forth herein or otherwise provided by law, a Side by Side meeting all of the 
following conditions may be operated on a road or street in the City: 
 
a. At a speed of no more than 25 miles per hour or a lower posted Side by Side speed 
limit. 
 
b. By a person of 16 years of age or older in possession of a valid Michigan Driver’s 
License   or a comparable valid driver’s license of another state or province of Canada.   
 
c. With the flow of traffic. 
 
d. In a manner which does not interfere with traffic on the road or street. 
 
e. Traveling single file except when overtaking and passing another Side by Side, where 
passing is allowed by law. 
 
f. Operation hours; one 1/2 hour before sunrise until one 1/2 hour after sunset. 
 
g. While displaying a lighted headlight and lighted taillight at all operational hours. 
 
h. While the operator and each passenger are wearing a crash helmet and protective 
eyewear approved by the United States Department of Transportation (DOT) unless the 
vehicle is equipped with a roof that meets or exceeds standards for a crash helmet and 
the operator and each passenger is wearing a properly adjusted and fastened seat belt. 
 
i. With a throttle so designed that when the pressure used to advance the throttle is 
removed, the engine speed will immediately and automatically return to idle. 
 
j. While the Side by Side is equipped with a spark arrester type United States forest 
service approved muffler in good working order and in constant operation. 
 
k. Pursuant to noise emission standards defined by law. 
 
SEC. 27.414: AGE 
  

• A person less than 16 years of age shall not operate a Side by Side on a road in 
the City.   

• A person 16 years of age or older shall not operate a Side by Side in the City 
unless in the possession of a valid driver’s license issued by the State of Michigan, 
another state, or a province of Canada.  

 
SEC. 27.415: CIVIL FINE 
Any person who violates this ordinance is guilty of a municipal civil infraction and may be 
ordered to pay a civil fine of not more than $500.00. 
 
SEC. 27.416: DAMAGE RESTITUTION 
A court shall order a person who causes damage to the environment, a road or other 
property as a result of the operation of a Side by Side to pay full restitution for that damage 
above and beyond the penalties paid for civil fines. 
 
SEC. 27.416: FINE ALLOCATION 
The City Treasurer shall deposit all fines and damages collected under this ordinance into 
a fund to be designated as the Side-by-Side Fund. The City Council shall appropriate 
revenue in the Side-by-Side Fund as follows: 

• a. Fifty percent to the Escanaba Department of Public Works for repairing 
damage to roads and the environment that may have been caused by Side by 
Sides, and for posting signs indicating Side by Side speed limits or indicating 
whether roads are open or closed to the operation of Side by Sides. 

• b. Fifty percent to Escanaba Public Safety enforcement and training. 



Ordinance No. 1260 

3 
 

SEC. 27.417: MASTER MAP MAINTENANCE 
The City shall maintain a master map of all roads upon which shall be indicated those 
roads and parts of sections thereof upon which the operation of Side by Sides is permitted 
and prohibited pursuant to this ordinance. The City shall make such a master map 
available for interested groups or organizations to make copies for distribution to the 
general public, but shall have no obligation to make, or to assume any expense 
associated with the making of such copies. 

a. The City shall update the master map once annually, between January 1 and February 
28 of each year, to incorporate any changes to the designation of any road, or parts or 
sections thereof, upon why the operation of Side by Side is permitted or prohibited 
pursuant to this ordinance. 
 
b. It shall be the responsibility of the respective City Council to determine, prior to January 
1 of each year of any changes to be incorporated in to the master map for the year. 
 

CHAPTER II 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is, for any 
reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, section, 
subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared unconstitutional.  
      

CHAPTER III 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES REPEALING CLAUSE 

 
All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance ae 
hereby repealed.   
 

CHAPTER IV 
Effective Date 

 
This Ordinance  shall be in full force and effect ten (10) days after its passage and 
publication. 
 
APPROVED:       APPROVED: 
 
 
             
        Mark Ammel 
City Attorney       Mayor 
 
Date Approved:      Attest 
 
Date Published:      
             
        Phil DeMay 
        City Clerk 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance duly 

adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a Regular 

Meeting held on the (date) day of (month), 2022, and was published in the Daily Press, a 

newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba on (day), (month) (date), 2022, and that 

said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full 

compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that 

the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by 

said Act. 

             
        Phil DeMay 
        City Clerk 
 



Amasa Street

E
w

e
n
 A

v e
n
u
e

F
e
lc

h
 A

v e
n
u
e

Baraga Street

Calumet Street

24th Ave So

N
o
 1

6
th

 S
t

5th Ave No

S
o

 1

4 th Street

Lakeshore Circ le

Steph A
ve

 RAB

Portage Point 1
1.4

 L
n

12th Rd

M
 3

5

M
 3

5

M 35

S
 2

3
rd

 S
t

R
e

n
a

is
s
a

n
c
e

 L
n

26th Ave S

25th Ave S

24th Ave S

23rd Ave S

22nd Ave S 22nd Ave S

21st Ave S

20th Ave S 20th Ave S

19th Ave S

S
 2

1
s
t 

P
l

S
 2

1
.5

 D
r

S
 2

2
n
d

 P
l

S
 2

2
.5

 D
r

18th Ave S 18th Ave S18th Ave So

Tamarack Ave So

B
ir

ch
 S

t

O
a
k
 S

t

Hemlock Ave So
17th Ave S

G
ra

nd
 A

ve
 S

Cedar Ave So

S
o
 3

0
th

 S
t

Park Ave

Beech Av e

W
o
o

d
la

n
d
 S

t

1
6
th

 A
ve

 S

16th Ave SBalsam Ave So

S
o

  
3
0

t h
  
S

t

Spruce Ave

M
.5

 L
n

M
. 5

 L
n

15th Ave S

14th Ave S 14th Ave S 14th Ave S

Jingob (Spruce) Street

13th Ave S
13th Ave S

Gijik (Cedar) Street

12th Ave So
12th Ave S

11th Ave S

10th Ave S

S
 2

5
th

 P
l

S
 2

5
th

 P
l

9th Ave S

9th Ave S

S
 3

6
t h

 S
t

S
 3

8t
h 

St

13.75 Rd 13.75 Rd 8th Ave S 8th Ave S

8th Ave S

7th Pl

S
 B

a
y
 S

t

7th Ave S 7th Ave S
7th Ave S 7th Ave S

S
 2

0
th

 S
t

S
 2

0
th

 S
t

S
 2

1
s
t 
S

t

S
 2

1
s
t 
S

t

S
 2

1
st St

6th Ave S 6th Ave S 6th Ave S

S
 2

8
th

 S
t

S
 2

8
th

 S
t

S
 3

0
th

 S
t

S
 2

9
th

 S
t

S
 3

1
st

 S
t

W
ill

o
w

 C
re

e
k 

R
d

W
ill

ow
 C

re
e
k 

R
d

5th Ave S

5th Ave S 5th Ave S

4th Ave S

4th Ave S

S
 3

2n
d 

S
t

B
on

i fa
s
 R

o
a
d

Bon
if
a

s
 R

o
a

d

Boni
fa

s 
R

oa
d

Lo
re

n 
W

 J
en

ki
ns

 M

em
or

ia
l D

r

La
ke

sh
or

e 
D
riv

e

L
ak

es
ho

re
 D

riv
e

Lak
es

ho
re

 D
riv

e

3rd Ave S

3rd Ave S 3rd Ave S

S
 4th St

S
 4

th
 S

t

Ogd
en

 A
ve

 S

2nd Ave S
2nd Ave S 2nd Ave S

B
ea

u

m ier Way

Beaumier Way

Lake Shore Dr

Lake
 S

hore D
r

La
ke

 S
h
or

e 
D

r

La
ke

 S
h
or

e 
D

r

Lake S
h

o
re

 D
r

2
n

d
 S

t S

S
 3

rd
 S

t

4
th

 S
t

S
 2

2
n
d

 S
t

S
 2

2
n
d

 S
t

S
 2

2
n
d

 S
t

S
 2

2
n
d

 S
t

S
 2

2
n
d

 S
t

1
1

th
 S

t

S
 1

2
th

 S
t

S
 1

3
th

 S
t

S
 1

3
th

 S
t

S
 1

4
th

 S
t

S
 1

5
th

 S
t

S
 1

5
th

 S
t

S
 1

6
t h

 S
t

S 16th St

S
 1

6
th

 S
t

S
 1

7
th

 S
t

S
 1

8
th

 S
t

S
 1

8
th

 S
t

S
 1

9
th

 S
t

S
 1

9
th

 S
t

S
o
u

th
 L

in
c o

ln
 R

d
S

o
u

th
 L

in
co

ln
 R

d
S

o
u

th
 L

in
co

ln
 R

d

S
 2

5
th

 S
t

1st Ave S

1st Ave S

1st Ave S 1st Ave S

S
 2

6
t h

 S
t

S
 2

6
th

 S
t

8
th

 S
t 

N

N
 7

th
 S

t

Ludington St Ludington St Ludington St

N
 2

5
th

 S
t N

 3
rd

 S
t

N
 9

th
 S

tN
 1

2
th

 S
tN

 1
4
th

 S
t

N
 1

3
th

 S
tN

 1
5

th
 S

t

N 3rd Pl 3rd Pl

4th Ave N

4th Ave N

5th Ave N

6th Ave N
6th Ave N

7th Ave N

8th Ave N 8th Ave N

10th Ave N 10th Ave N

11th Ave N

11th Ave N

12th Ave N

W
a
shing

to
n A

ve

13th Ave N 13th Ave N

N
 2

2
n
d
 S

t

N
 2

2
n
d
 S

t

14th Ave N

15th Ave N

Ski Hill Rd

Ski Hill Rd

Ski Hill Rd

S
te

p
h
e
n

so
n

 A
ve

N
 1

6
th

 S
t

N
 1

6
th

 S
t

N
 1

6
th

 S
t

N
 1

6
th

 S
t

N
 1

6
th

 S
t

N
 1

8
th

 S
t

N
 1

8
th

 S
t

N
 1

8
th

 S
t

N
 1

8
th

 S
t

N
 2

0
th

 S
t

N
 2

0
th

 S
t

16th Ave N 16th Ave N

17th Ave N

N
o
 2

8
th

 S
t

N
 4

8
th

 S
t

19th Ave No

19th Ave No

O
re

 T
e

rm
i n

a
l  A

cc
e
ss R

d

N
o
rth

 1
4

th
 S

tre
e
t

19th Ave N

N
 2

1
st

 S
t

N
 2

1
s
t 
S

t
N

 2
1

st
 S

t

N
 2

1
s t S

t

20th Ave N 20th Ave N

N
 2

3
rd

 S
t

N
 2

3
r d

 S
t

N
 L

in
co

ln
 R

d

N
 L

in
co

ln
 R

d

N
 L

in
co

ln
 R

d

21st Avenue North

Esc
anaba River Access Rd

N
 1

9
th

 S
t

N
 1

9
th

 S
t

N
 1

9
th

 S
t

23rd Ave N

S
 5

th
 S

t

S
 5

th
 S

t

S
h
er

i d
a

n
 R

d

S
h
e
rid

a
n

 R
d

S
 6

th
 S

t

S
 6

th
 S

t

S
 1

0
th

 S
t

S
 1

0
th

 S
t

S
 8

th
 S

t

S
 8

th
 S

t

S
 9

th
 S

tA
lle

y

A
lle

y

A
lle

y

S
 1

1
th

 S
t

S
 1

1
th

 S
t

College Ave

U
nknow

n 18N

S
 7

th
 S

t

S
 7

t h
 S

t

Danforth Rd

Danforth Rd

S
 2nd S

t

U
n

k
n
o

w
n
 1

8
M

U
n
know

n 18L

S
 1st S

t

N
 1

0
th

 S
t

N
 1

0
th

 S
t

Main St

Main S
t

1st Ave N1st Ave N1st Ave N 1st Ave N1st Ave N1st Ave N1st Ave N 1st Ave N1st Ave N 1st Ave N1st Ave N1st Ave N1st Ave N 1st Ave N 1st Ave N1st Ave N

1st Ave N

1st Ave N

N
 6

th
 S

t

N
 6

th
 S

t N
 2nd S

t

N
 2

nd
 S

t

Unknown

2nd Ave N2nd Ave N2nd Ave N 2nd Ave N2nd Ave N 2nd Ave N2nd Ave N

2nd Ave N

2nd Ave N 2nd Ave N2nd Ave N 2nd Ave N

N
 1

1
th

 S
t

N
 1

1
th

 S
t

N
 3

2
n
d
 S

t

N 27th Ave

N 27th Ave

2nd A
ve

2n
d

 A
ve

3rd Ave No

Unknown 18F

N
 8

th
 S

t

N 8th St

2
8

th
 S

t

29th Ave N

N
 3

0
th

 S
t

N
 3

0
th

 S
t

N
 3

0
th

 S
t

N
 3

0
th

 S
t

N
 3

0
th

 S
t

N
 5

th
 S

t

N
 5

th
 S

t

N
 4

th
 S

t

N
 4th S

t

US 2 US 2 US 2 US 2

U
S

 2

U
S

 2

U
S

 2
U

S
 2

U
S

 2

U
S

 2

U
S

 2
U

S
 2

US 2

C
 9

9

32nd Ave N

P
atricia

 0
.0

7
 S

t

E
 O

a
k
 P

a
rk

 0
.1

 D
r

17.4 Rd

3rd
 S

t

S Oak Park 17.5 Dr

Unknown 21 14 2

Airport Rd

Airport Rd

3rd Ave N

3rd Ave N3rd Ave N3rd Ave N 3rd Ave N 3rd Ave N3rd Ave N3rd Ave N3rd Ave N

3rd A
ve

 N

9th Ave N

N
 2

6
th

 S
t

N
 2

6
th

 S
t

N
 2

6
th

 S
t

N
 2

6
th

 S
t

N
 2

6
th

 S
t

P
o

rt a
g

e
 C

re
e k

P
or tag

e C
reek

Por tage Cr ee k

Portage
 C reek

P
o

rt
a

g
e

 C
re

e
k

P
o

rta
g

e Creek

Portage Creek

W
il

lo
w

 C
re

e
k

W
il

lo
w

 C
re

e
k

Willow Cre
ek

W
ill

o
w

 C
re

e
k

W
illo

w
 C

re
e

k

W
i l

lo
w

 C
re

e
k

W
ill o

w
 C

r e
e

k





 
 
 

Blue area has been green space in the past needs black dirt mucked, clean compacted fill, and 
gravel base 
 
Red area will have existing pavement tore up for construction and Storm Sewer work 
 
Black had been prepared with clean sand and some gravel base, but does not have any existing 
pavement 
 
 

 


	04.21.2022 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm04.04.2022 special
	cm04.04.2022 budget
	cm04.05.2022 budget
	cm04.07.2022
	cm04.13.2022 special
	NB-2
	MX-M363N_20220411_140521
	NB-2

	NB-3
	MX-M363N_20220413_131834

	NB-4
	MX-M363N_20220413_132602

	NB-5
	NB-5
	MX-M363N_20220413_133352

	MX-M363N_20220413_144104

	NB-6
	NB-7
	NB-8
	NB-8
	MX-M363N_20220414_143654
	NB-8

	ord1260 Escanaba Side by Side

	NB-9
	NB-9
	Parking lot prep work 2022 (1)




